
Your Community. 
Our Commitment. 

UNION    PARK EAST
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Advanced Meeting Package 

Regular Meeting 

Date/Time: 
Wednesday 

October 22, 2025 
6:00 p.m. 

Location: 
Fairfield Inn & Suites 
2650 Lajuana Blvd., 

Wesley Chapel, FL 33543 

Note:  The Advanced Meeting Package is a working document and thus all materials are 
considered DRAFTS prior to presentation and Board acceptance, approval or adoption. 



UNION    PARK EAST
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

c/o Vesta District Services 
250 International Parkway, Suite 208 

Lake Mary, FL  32746 
321-263-0132

Board of Supervisors  
Union Park East Community Development District 

Dear Board Members: 

The Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Union Park East Community Development 
District is scheduled for Wednesday, October 22, 2025 at 6:00 p.m. at Fairfield Inn & Suites – 2650 
Lajuana Blvd., Wesley Chapel, FL 33543. 

The advanced copy of the agenda for the meeting is attached along with associated documentation for 
your review and consideration.  Any additional support material will be distributed at the meeting. 

Should you have any questions regarding the agenda, please contact the District Manager at (321) 263-
0132 X 536 or hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com. We look forward to seeing you at the meeting. 

Sincerely, 

Heath Beckett 
Heath Beckett 
District Manager 

CC: Attorney  
Engineer 
District Records 



Page 1 of 3 

UNION    PARK EAST 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

DRAFT Original 10/15/2025 Denotes Return to Agenda Link:  

Meeting Date: Wednesday, October 22, 2025 Join via Computer or Mobile App 
Time: 6:00 p.m. Dial-in Number: 1-904-348-0776 

Location: Fairfield Inn & Suites Phone Conference ID: 684 257 747# 
2650 Lajuana Blvd. (Mute/Unmute: *6) 
Wesley Chapel, FL 33543 (Raise/Lower Hand: *5) 

Regular Meeting Agenda 
The full draft agenda packet will be posted to the CDD website under District Documents 

when it becomes available, or it may be requested no earlier than 7 days prior to the meeting date 
by emailing sconley@vestapropertyservices.com 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS: Roll Call 
In 

Person 
Virtually Not 

VACANT (1) 
Vincent Pacifico (2-C) 
Michelle Diman (3) 
Richard Ramirez (4) 
Gerard Bianchi (5-VC) 

Staff/Vendors 
Heath Beckett, Vesta 
Michael Bush, Vesta 
Savannah Hancock, Kilinski Van Wyk 
Amy Palmer, Lighthouse Engineering 
Chris Thompson, Blue Water Aquatics 
Casey Hallman, Floralawn 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS:

A. Consideration of Supervisor Candidate(s)

B. Administration of Oaths of Office

C. Adoption of Resolution 2026-01, Designating Officers

Under Separate Cover 

EXHIBIT 1 

EXHIBIT 2

D. Overview of Sunshine and Public Record Laws

References:
Guide to Sunshine Amendment & Code of Ethics for Public Officers &
Employees
Government in the Sunshine Training
Free Resources for Required Ethics Training

l

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS: Audience Comments – Agenda Items
(Limited to 3 Minutes Per Person)

Seat 1 Supervisor Appointment 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NDg4OGNmZDgtZmY1YS00NWExLTg4YzAtMWFmODU2Y2YwMmVl%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%228af87444-20b6-4d0d-8eb0-34a4747a03fd%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b972186f-9719-4b44-bdb6-31b88894beeb%22%7d
https://www.unionparkeastcdd.org/documents
mailto:sconley@vestapropertyservices.com
https://ethics.state.fl.us/Documents/Publications/GuideBookletInternet.pdf?cp=2024327
https://ethics.state.fl.us/Documents/Publications/GuideBookletInternet.pdf?cp=2024327
https://www.myfloridalegal.com/open-government/training
https://ethics.state.fl.us/Training/Training.aspx


UNION PARK EAST October 22, 2025 Agenda 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT Page 2 of 3 

DRAFT Original 10/15/2025 Denotes Return to Agenda Link:  

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Operations & Maintenance 

A. Aquatic Maintenance – Chris Thompson, Blue Water Aquatics

1. Presentation of Reports: EXHIBIT 3 

a. Pond Treatments

b. Fountain Repairs

2. Consideration of Quarterly Fountain Maintenance - $7,000.00/Yr EXHIBIT 4 

B. Landscape Maintenance – Casey Hallman, Floralawn EXHIBIT 5 

1. Consideration of Floralawn Proposals: EXHIBIT 6 

C. Field Manager – Michael Bush, Vesta District Services EXHIBIT 7 

1. Consideration of Field Operation Proposals EXHIBIT 8 

D. District Counsel – Savannah Hancock, Kilinski Van Wyk

E. District Engineer – Amy Palmer, Lighthouse Engineering

1. Discussion on Reported Erosion EXHIBIT 9 

F. District Manager – Heath Beckett, Vesta District Services

1. Discussion on Hovenweep Stormwater Drain EXHIBIT 10 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Business Matters 

A. Consideration of License Agreement to Host Events and Activities on District
Property
1. HOA Community Events EXHIBIT 11 

2. Free or Donation-Based Yoga Class (Reynolds) EXHIBIT 12 

3. Consideration of Request to Set Up Jewelry Booth on District Property
During Community Events (O’Cain)

EXHIBIT 13 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Consent Agenda 

A. Approval of the Minutes of the Board of Supervisors Special Meeting Held May
30, 2024 

EXHIBIT 14 

B. Approval of the Minutes of the Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Held
September 24, 2025

EXHIBIT 15  

C. Acceptance of the Unaudited September 2025 Financial Statement EXHIBIT 16 

D. Ratification of Blue Water Aquatics Fountain H Repair Approval - $282.25 EXHIBIT 17 

E. Acceptance of Arbitrage Rebate Counselors Reporting of No Incurred Arbitrage
Liability for:

EXHIBIT 18 

1. Bond Series 2017 A-1, A-2, and A-3

2. Bond Series 2021  

l



UNION PARK EAST October 22, 2025 Agenda 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT Page 3 of 3 

DRAFT Original 10/15/2025 Denotes Return to Agenda Link:  

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS:

A. Closed Session (No Action Will be Taken During the Closed Session)

1. Discussion on District Security Matters

B. Consideration of Action Relating to Security Matters

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Next Meeting Quorum Check 

In 
Person 

Virtually Not 

(1) 
Vincent Pacifico 
Michelle Diman 
Richard Ramirez 
Gerard Bianchi 

Wednesday, November 19, 2025  
at 6:00 p.m.  
Fairfield Inn & Suites Tampa Wesley Chapel 
2650 Lajuana Boulevard 
Wesley Chapel, FL  33543 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Action Items Summary (To be Included in the Meeting Minutes) 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Adjournment 

l

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Supervisor Requests 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Audience Comments – Non-Agenda Items/New Business 
(Limited to 3 Minutes Per Person) 
Security Matters 



UNION PARK EAST  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT STONEBRIER  

 
 
 
 

 
EXHIBIT 1 

 
  

l



Union Park East Community Development District

Board of Supervisors Oath of Office 

I, _______________________________________, a citizen of the State of Florida and of the 

United States of America, and being a Supervisor of the Union Park East Community

Development District (the “District”) and a recipient of public funds as such Supervisor, do 

hereby solemnly swear or affirm that I will support the Constitution of the United States and of 

the State of Florida, and will faithfully, honestly, and impartially discharge the duties devolving 

upon me in the office of Supervisor of the Union Park East Community Development District,

located in Pasco County, Florida.

_____________________________________ 

Signature 

________________________ 

Date 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF PASCO

The foregoing oath was administered before me by means of physical presence, this 

______ day of ___________________, 20___ by _______________________________, who is 

 personally known to me or  who has produced ______________________ as identification,

and is the person described in and who took the aforementioned oath as a Member of the Board of

Supervisors of the Union Park East Community Development District and acknowledged to and

before me that she/he took said oath for purposes therein expressed.

WITNESS my hand and official seal the date aforesaid. 

____________________________________ 

Notary Public State of Florida 

________________________ 
(Print, Type or Stamp Commissioned Name of  

Notary Public and the Date the Commission Expires) 

l



OATH OF OFFICE 
(Art. II. § 5(b), Fla. Const.) 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

County of    

I do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will support, protect, and defend the Constitution and 
Government of the United States and of the State of Florida; that I am duly qualified to hold office 
under the Constitution of the State, and that I will well and faithfully perform the duties of 

(Full Name of Office – Abbreviations Not Accepted) 

on which I am now about to enter, so help me God. 

[NOTE: If you affirm, you may omit the words “so help me God.” See § 92.52, Fla. Stat.] 

Signature 

(Affix Seal Below) Sworn to and subscribed before me by means of ____  physical presence 

Or ___ online notarization this ____ day of _______________, 20  __   . 

Signature of Officer Administering Oath or of Notary Public 

Print, Type, or Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public 

Personally Known     or Produced Identification   

Type of Identification Produced  

ACCEPTANCE 
I accept the office listed in the above Oath of Office. 

Mailing Address:    Home     Office 

Street or Post Office Box Print Name 

City, State, Zip Code Signature 

DS-DE 56 (Rev. 09/23) 
l



UNION PARK EAST  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT STONEBRIER  

 
 
 
 

 
EXHIBIT 2 

 
  

l



RESOLUTION 2026-01

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

DESIGNATING THE OFFICERS OF UNION PARK EAST
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, AND PROVIDING 

FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Union Park East Community Development District (the “District”), is a 
local unit of special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, 

Florida Statues, being situated entirely within Pasco County, Florida; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (hereinafter the “Board”) now desire to designate 

the Officers of the District per F.S. 190.006(6). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 

UNION PARK EAST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

1. The following persons are elected to the offices shown, to wit:

Chairman 

Vice Chairman 

Kyle Darin 

Secretary 

Johanna Lee Treasurer 

Scott Smith Assistant Treasurer 

Patricia Kehr Assistant Treasurer 

Assistant Secretary 

Assistant Secretary 

Assistant Secretary 

Heath Beckett 

Assistant Secretary 

Shirley Conley Assistant Secretary 

2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS ____ DAY OF ____________, 2025.

ATTEST: UNION PARK EAST COMMUNITY

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Name: ________________________________ Heath Beckett, Secretary

Kyle Darin, Assistant Secretary Chair Vice Chair of the Board of Supervisors

l



UNION PARK EAST  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT STONEBRIER  

 
 
 
 

 
EXHIBIT 3 

 
  

l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



UNION PARK EAST  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT STONEBRIER  

 
 
 
 

 
EXHIBIT 4 

 
  

l



Union Park East CDD-Fountain Preventative Maint Agreement 09-23-2025
HEADQUARTERS: 5119 State Road 54              New Port Richey, FL 34652 
Phone: 727-842-2100              Email: Office@BlueWaterAquaticsInc.com

Fountain Preventative Maintenance Agreement

This fountain preventative maintenance agreement, dated September 23, 2025, and with an anticipated 
start date of                                                                 , is made between Blue Water Aquatics, Inc.
(hereinafter “Blue Water Aquatics”) located at 5119 State Road 54. New Port Richey, FL 34652, and 
Union Park East CDD (hereinafter the “Customer”), c/o Vesta District Services, 250 International 
Parkway, Suite 208, Lake Mary, FL 32746. 

Both Blue Water Aquatics and the Customer agree to the following terms and conditions:  

Contract Term:  The term of this Agreement shall be for twelve (12) consecutive months unless sooner 
terminated as provided herein.

General Conditions: Blue Water Aquatics will perform quarterly fountain inspection and cleaning 
services on seven (7) existing Vertex® 5HP, floating fountains on behalf of the Customer in 
accordance with the term and conditions of this agreement as follows:

Submersible Pump – Inspect and clean the pump intake screens Included

Electrical Panel – Inspect, and test current reading of motor Included

Lights & Lenses – Inspect, and clean the lights and lenses Included

Float – Inspect and clean all surfaces of the float Included

Tie-Downs/Mooring Lines – Inspect all tie-downs / mooring lines Included

Timer(s) – Inspect timer(s) and reset, as necessary Included

Display Heads, Jets & Rings – Inspect and clean each part and disassemble the parts, 
if needed to clean orifice impediments Included

      Total Fountain Preventative Maintenance Contract Amount $ 1,750.00/quarterly   

No parts or special repairs are included in our preventative maintenance agreement. Any parts or 
repair costs will be invoiced separately. Any service calls for fountain repairs outside of this 
agreement will be invoiced separately on a time and materials basis, with a one-hour minimum
service charge.  Blue Water Aquatics does not assume responsibility for parts failure.

The above price is effective for ninety (90) days from the date of this proposal.  

Weather Delays
Customer understands that weather conditions—including but not limited to rain, cloud cover, and 
wind—may delay service. In such cases, Blue Water Aquatics will complete the work as soon as 
reasonably possible. The time required to fulfill all work under this Agreement may vary depending on 
the duration and severity of weather conditions. 

l



Union Park East CDD-Fountain Preventative Maint Agreement 09-23-2025
HEADQUARTERS: 5119 State Road 54              New Port Richey, FL 34652
Phone: 727-842-2100              Email: Office@BlueWaterAquaticsInc.com

Third-Party Fees
Customer agrees to reimburse Blue Water Aquatics for any processing fees related to registering with 
third-party compliance monitoring services and/or invoicing portals.

Payment Terms
Customer agrees to pay all invoices within thirty (30) days of receipt. Accepted payment methods 
include Cash, Check, Money Order, Zelle, ACH, or Credit Card (a 3% fee applies to all credit card 
transactions). Accounts more than thirty (30) days past due may result in suspension of future work.
Customer is responsible for all charges incurred from the start of service until Blue Water Aquatics 
receives written notice of termination in accordance with this Agreement.
Any invoice unpaid after sixty (60) days will accrue interest at 1.5% per month until paid in full.
If collection proceedings are required, Customer agrees to pay all related costs, including reasonable 
attorney’s fees, court costs, and other expenses.

Disclaimer
While Blue Water Aquatics makes every effort to inspect the site prior to preparing a proposal or 
starting work, unforeseen or hidden conditions may arise without fault or negligence. These may result 
in additional time or material costs beyond the contract price. In such cases, the Customer will be 
notified of the issue and any anticipated additional charges.
By signing this Agreement, Customer confirms they have disclosed all known and relevant site 
conditions necessary to complete the work, such as access, parking, staging areas, fencing, obstructions, 
or gate codes.

Insurance
Blue Water Aquatics maintains Workers’ Compensation, General Liability, Automotive Liability, and 
Property & Casualty insurance. A Certificate of Insurance is available upon request. If Customer 
requests to be named as an “Additional Insured,” any related costs will be billed to the Customer.

Termination
Either party may terminate this Agreement with thirty (30) days’ written notice.

Automatic Renewal
This Agreement will automatically renew annually on the anniversary date unless terminated by either 
party with thirty (30) days’ written notice.

Annual Price Adjustment
Starting on the first anniversary of the contract commencement date, and each year thereafter, the 
contract price will adjust by the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index (CPI-U, U.S. City 
Average, all goods and services), as published by the U.S. Department of Labor.

Written Notice
All written notices must be sent by Certified U.S. Mail, Return Receipt Requested, to the party’s 
principal place of business listed in this Agreement.

l



Union Park East CDD-Fountain Preventative Maint Agreement 09-23-2025
HEADQUARTERS: 5119 State Road 54              New Port Richey, FL 34652
Phone: 727-842-2100              Email: Office@BlueWaterAquaticsInc.com

E-Verify
Blue Water Aquatics uses the federal E-Verify program for contracts with public employers, as required 
by Florida Statute 448.095, and certifies compliance with all related provisions.

Addenda
See attached map, survey, and/or report, where applicable.

___________________________________ _________________________________
Christopher Thompson, President Customer Signature
Blue Water Aquatics, Inc.

_________________________________
Printed Name & Title

            09/23/2025                                        _________________________________
Date Date

Our Fountain & Aeration Specialists provide comprehensive repair, maintenance and installation 
services for a wide variety of systems, including:

Airmax
Kasco
Vertex
Grundfos

Otterbine
AquaMaster
Pentair

l



Union Park East CDD-Fountain Preventative Maint Agreement 09-23-2025
HEADQUARTERS: 5119 State Road 54              New Port Richey, FL 34652
Phone: 727-842-2100              Email: Office@BlueWaterAquaticsInc.com

l



UNION PARK EAST
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT STONEBRIER 

EXHIBIT 5
PENDING

l



UNION PARK EAST
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT STONEBRIER 

EXHIBIT 6
PENDING

l



UNION PARK EAST
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT STONEBRIER 

EXHIBIT 7
PENDING

l



UNION PARK EAST
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT STONEBRIER 

EXHIBIT 8
PENDING

l



UNION PARK EAST
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT STONEBRIER 

EXHIBIT 9

l



M E M O R A N D U M

1 of 3   

TO: Union Park East CDD

FROM: Bradley S. Foran, P.E. 

DATE: 10/14/2025 

RE:  Erosion – 1157 Pipestone Place 

A site visit was performed on 10/10/2025 to observe a resident’s concern about erosion along the 
wall at the back of their property.  Conditions were difficult to observe due to the backyard area 
being covered with astro turf.  The homeowner had already remediated the erosion by filling the 
spots with cement.  It was our observation that the back wall has a significant amount of space under 
it that allows water to enter the property and cause erosion issues.  We also noted utilities on the 
outside of the wall, which if compromised, could also be cause for erosion.   It is our 
recommendation that the area be revisited in 6 months to observe if any more erosion has taken 
place or if the cement fill was sufficient to remediate the issue.  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Homeowner picture showing erosion under the 
wall outside of property. 

l



M E M O R A N D U M

2 of 3   

                  
 

                  

Erosion under the wall on the 
outside of homeowner’s 
property. 

Inside homeowner’s property, 
erosion filled with stones.  

The amount of erosion was 
approximately two feet from the 
wall.  

l



M E M O R A N D U M

3 of 3   

                 

Utilities outside the 
wall.  

Utilities outside the 
wall.  

l



UNION PARK EAST  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT STONEBRIER  

 
 
 
 

 
EXHIBIT 10 

 
  

l



From: PlannerSchedulers <PlannerSchedulers@pascocountyfl.net> 

Date: October 8, 2025 at 3:07:12 PM EDT 

To: tstabie@gmail.com 

Cc: "Lorie M. Bowman" <lbowman@pascocountyfl.net>, PlannerSchedulers 

<PlannerSchedulers@pascocountyfl.net>, "Bryan D. Holmes" <bholmes@pascocountyfl.net> 

Subject: RE: Drainage hole - needs clearing & pothole 

  

Good Afternoon Tara, 

 Thank you for contacting Pasco County Department of Public Works regarding the drainage concerns in 

Union Park.  We understand this matter is important to you and other citizens within the community.  

 Currently, Union Park Phase 7B is under a maintenance bond guarantee.  This bond was accepted by the 

county in Jun of 2024, and generally runs for a period of 36 months.  During this period, maintenance is 

the responsibility of the developer. 

 Until the developer has petitioned the county to release the bond and accept the improvements for 

maintenance, the bond requires the developer to continue to maintain the area. 

 For clarification, the area at the ends of the cross pipe under Hovenweep are what as known as catch 

basins.  The serve to reduce the velocity of the water flowing through the pipe. They are simply concrete 

pads, they do not actually drain.  The culvert under Hovenweep remains the responsibility of the 

developer. 

 At Pasco County we strive to provide excellent public services that meet the needs of our citizens and 

enhance the quality of life for our residents and visitors, Public Works continues to be diligent in helping 

to resolve issues such as these and we thank you for your communication and patience as we strive to 

keep  Pasco a Premier County.  

 If you have any further questions or concerns, please feel free to contact me directly.  

 Respectfully,  

  

        

 

Tracy Okel 

Project Coordinator III 

Department of Public Works 

Pasco County 

P: 727-834-3611 x1062 

C:  727-514-3608 

4454 Grand Blvd 

New Port Richey, FL 34652 

tokel@mypasco.net 

www.mypasco.net 

  

“Serving our community to create a better future.” 

  

  

l

mailto:PlannerSchedulers@pascocountyfl.net
mailto:tstabie@gmail.com
mailto:lbowman@pascocountyfl.net
mailto:PlannerSchedulers@pascocountyfl.net
mailto:bholmes@pascocountyfl.net
mailto:tokel@mypasco.net
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.pascocountyfl.net%2F&data=05%7C02%7Csconley%40vestapropertyservices.com%7C542bb1c187934637efc408de0755152b%7C8af8744420b64d0d8eb034a4747a03fd%7C0%7C0%7C638956259358495109%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=5brXp%2BL%2BYpzcBjCvB%2ByDhz52pZ%2FuVeYymgsqGZ5UykM%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.pascocountyfl.net%2F&data=05%7C02%7Csconley%40vestapropertyservices.com%7C542bb1c187934637efc408de0755152b%7C8af8744420b64d0d8eb034a4747a03fd%7C0%7C0%7C638956259358478085%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=G8r0BMN5CiE65m6%2BEmG7tIKw9MislyIOXsITL1seeVc%3D&reserved=0


From: Tara Stabie <tstabie@gmail.com>  

Sent: Tuesday, October 7, 2025 10:17 AM 

To: Heath Beckett <hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com>; Seth D. Weightman 

<sweightman@pascocountyfl.net> 

Cc: Kyle T. Darin <kdarin@vestapropertyservices.com>; Vincent Pacifico 

<upeastcddvinny@gmail.com> 

Subject: Re: Drainage hole - needs clearing & pothole 

  

   

 

 Tara 

  

l

mailto:tstabie@gmail.com
mailto:hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com
mailto:sweightman@pascocountyfl.net
mailto:kdarin@vestapropertyservices.com
mailto:upeastcddvinny@gmail.com


  

On Tue, Oct 7, 2025 at 10:06 AM Tara Stabie <tstabie@gmail.com> wrote: 

Hi Seth, 

I’m hoping you can help out. I reached out over a year ago about a drainage hole that needed to be cleared 

and cleaned, and I was told at the time that it was CDD property. However, CDD is saying it falls under 

the County’s responsibility. 

The drainage hole (which is now almost completely covered) is located across from the Charter School, at 

the end of Old Woods/Hovenweep Road (Union Park) on the townhome side. 

Thanks so much for your help in clarifying who’s responsible for resolving this! 

Tara Stabile, Ed.D.  

  

  

On Tue, Oct 7, 2025 at 9:38 AM Heath Beckett <hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com> wrote: 

Good morning, Tara 

 The drainage structure you are speaking of belongs to Pasco County.  Unfortunately, the CDD can not do 

anything with this drainage structure as it does not belong to us, and we are not permitted to spend any 

money on non-CDD property. 

I am also attaching communication I had with you in September, as you shared below that you have been 

reaching out for months with no update. 

 I have also removed all the supervisors except for Vinny, as this could cause sunshine law violations by 

having all the supervisors attached on one email. 

 Thank you, 

Heath Beckett 

District Manager 

  

From: Tara Stabie <tstabie@gmail.com>  

Sent: Monday, October 6, 2025 8:59 PM 

To: Heath Beckett <hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com>; upeastcddvinny@gmail.com; 

upeastcddmichelle@gmail.com; upeastcddrick@gmail.com; upeastcddgerard@gmail.com 

Cc: Kyle T. Darin <kdarin@vestapropertyservices.com> 

Subject: Re: Drainage hole - needs clearing & pothole 

 Copying all Board members for documentation.  

  

 On Mon, Oct 6, 2025 at 8:55 PM Tara Stabie <tstabie@gmail.com> wrote: 

Hi all, 

I’ve been reaching out about this issue for a few months and haven’t received an update. The drainage 

hole is now covered with weeds and grass—you can barely see it anymore. This could lead to flooding or 

other safety issues if it’s not addressed soon. 

l

mailto:tstabie@gmail.com
mailto:hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com
mailto:tstabie@gmail.com
mailto:hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com
mailto:upeastcddvinny@gmail.com
mailto:upeastcddmichelle@gmail.com
mailto:upeastcddrick@gmail.com
mailto:upeastcddgerard@gmail.com
mailto:kdarin@vestapropertyservices.com
mailto:tstabie@gmail.com


I believe this falls under Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, the CDD is responsible for maintaining 

community infrastructure, including drainage systems. Since this falls within the district’s duties, I’d 

appreciate an update on when this repair and maintenance will be completed. 

Tara 

  

  

On Thu, Sep 4, 2025 at 8:55 AM Heath Beckett <hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com> wrote: 

Good morning, Tara 

 I am attaching the email follow up from the District Engineer.   

 Please let me know if you have any other questions. 

 Thanks, 

 Heath Beckett 

District Manager 

 

  

From: Tara Stabie <tstabie@gmail.com>  

Sent: Thursday, September 4, 2025 8:33 AM 

To: Heath Beckett <hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com> 

Cc: wendy perez <wperez1763@gmail.com>; Kyle T. Darin <kdarin@vestapropertyservices.com> 

Subject: Re: Drainage hole - needs clearing & pothole 

 Hi all, any follow ups?  

Tara 

  

  

On Tue, Aug 26, 2025 at 10:06 AM Tara Stabie <tstabie@gmail.com> wrote: 

Thank you! With all the rain it is getting even more clogged. 

Tara 

  

  

On Tue, Aug 26, 2025 at 9:49 AM Heath Beckett <hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com> wrote: 

Good morning, 

 At the last board meeting, we asked the District Engineer to look into the drainage hole.  I have not heard 

back from them so I have asked for an update on that from them. 

 Hopefully I will hear back from them soon. 

 Thanks, 

 Heath Beckett 

District Manager 

l

mailto:hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com
mailto:tstabie@gmail.com
mailto:hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com
mailto:wperez1763@gmail.com
mailto:kdarin@vestapropertyservices.com
mailto:tstabie@gmail.com
mailto:hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com


 

From: Tara Home <tstabie@gmail.com>  

Sent: Monday, August 25, 2025 8:16 PM 

To: Heath Beckett <hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com> 

Cc: wendy perez <wperez1763@gmail.com> 

Subject: Re: Drainage hole - needs clearing & pothole 

  

How there. Can you please reply.  

Disheartening when we receive this message and no reply.  

 Hello from your Vesta District Management Team, 

 

We’re looking forward to utilizing our uniquely qualified financial, accounting, and administrative 

leadership-and-support teams to resolve any immediate issues and to forward-plan for the benefit 

of Union Park East’s residents. 

 

We present the following guide to assist residents in understanding CDD operations so that staff 

can more efficiently meet the community’s needs. 

 

Make the District’s Website Your Go-To For District Information 

Become more familiar with the Union Park East website: www.unionparkeastcdd.org.This is the 

official platform for CDD communications. Official District information will not be posted on 

social media. The District’s website is where you’ll find meeting schedules, agenda packets, 

executed Minutes, budgets, forms, election information, contacts, and other information relating to 

the CDD’s function and its responsibilities. Please reach out to Heath or Shirley with questions on 

CDD business.  

  

l

mailto:tstabie@gmail.com
mailto:hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com
mailto:wperez1763@gmail.com
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ffwtrack.hikai.com%2Fv1%2Fclk%2FPdnncy7lQ4a6r2pDAXti1w%2CQCRH53TGQJuSUR5cKmJ5jA%2C0%2CaHR0cDovL3d3dy51bmlvbnBhcmtlYXN0Y2RkLm9yZy4_dXRtX2NhbXBhaWduPVVuaW9uX1BhcmtfX0FfTWVzc2FnZV9Gcm9tX1Zlc3RhXyZ1dG1fbWVkaXVtPWVtYWlsJnV0bV9zb3VyY2U9YnVsa19lbWFpbCZ1dG1faWQ9NDYwMjE2%2C1%2CN18xXzI0NzEzMjEyODI4MjM4NzExNw%2CdXYx%2CU0lHMQ%2CMTAwMQ%2C6k-syPNuDBEahY3t2bPff1ZJ5fXKbMP6K1FyRdvLjR4&data=05%7C02%7Csconley%40vestapropertyservices.com%7C542bb1c187934637efc408de0755152b%7C8af8744420b64d0d8eb034a4747a03fd%7C0%7C0%7C638956259359456423%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=ESj2uVgKdKJgiqucMG3yIbS4syHharZ2wsS6Aqc4lFw%3D&reserved=0


 

  

Supervisors Oversee, Staff Implement 

Elected Supervisors are in place to set and oversee the policies of the District; the District’s 

Management Team are responsible for implementing those policies in the day-to-day running of 

the CDD. Residents and Patrons are always welcome to discuss any CDD matter with 

Supervisors, but understand that Supervisors cannot discuss those matters with other Supervisors 

or make any decision on District business outside of a publicly noticed meeting  

– the wheels of government can in some cases turn a little slower than we would like, but Statutes 

are in place for accountability and government transparency purposes; Supervisors are subject to 

penalties if they do not act in accordance with Sunshine laws. If you have questions on the day-to-

day running of the District, please reach out to the District Management Team. 

  

Resolutions Require Reporting! 

In order for staff and vendors to respond to community needs, please submit your maintenance 

concerns and requests via the District’s website as they arise. Supervisors are not the intermediary 

for reporting initial concerns – please send those reports directly to the District Management Team 

via the District’s website. When those requests are submitted an email is sent confirming receipt 

and explaining the follow-up process. Timely reporting to staff allows the team to review and 

research the matter, follow up on any deficiencies with vendors, and to request proposals for items 

outside of an existing maintenance scope which can then be present to Supervisors at an upcoming 

meeting. CDD meetings are the only time Supervisors can discuss the matter and give further 

direction to staff and vendors as needed. Website requests not only allow staff to bring together 

the information Supervisors need for their meetings, but they also allow us to more efficiently 

track and monitor them through to resolution. 

l



  

Website Work in Progress, We Appreciate Your Patience 

The Vesta team is working to improve the information posted on the District’s website and 

accessibility to the District’s public records. Please be patient as we review the files and upload 

commonly requested records to the Documents section of the website. If a record hasn’t yet been 

posted, please reach out to Heath or Shirley to request it. 

  

District Manager: Heath Beckett 

1. hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com 

2. 321-263-0132 ext. 536 

  

Field Manager: Michael Bush 

1. mbush@vestapropertyservices.com 

2. 321-263-0132 ext. 

  

Amenity Manager: Barry Jeskewich 

1. bjeskewich@vestapropertyservices.com 

2. 321-263-0132 ext. 398 

Administrator: Shirley Conley 

  

1. sconley@vestapropertyservices.com 

2. 321-263-0132 ext. 749 

 

Union Park East CDD 

c/o Vesta District Services 

250 International Parkway, Suite 208 

Lake Mary, FL 32746 

  

If you have any questions, please reach out to us. 

Have a wonderful evening! 

 This message was sent by kai on behalf of the Union Park East CDD and Vesta District Services.  

Message sent by Kai, Tampa, FL , USA. 

  

  

Tara 

l

mailto:hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com
mailto:mbush@vestapropertyservices.com
mailto:bjeskewich@vestapropertyservices.com
mailto:sconley@vestapropertyservices.com


   

On Aug 9, 2025, at 10:14 AM, Tara Stabie <tstabie@gmail.com> wrote: 

Hi Heath, Hope all is well! 

I’m following up on my previous email. Could you let me know how the drainage hole issue will be 

addressed? We’re well into hurricane season, and for safety reasons, this type of maintenance should 

really be handled annually so we are proactive. Thanks for your help. I appreciate your time. 

Tara 

   

On Wed, Jul 16, 2025 at 8:35 AM Tara Stabie <tstabie@gmail.com> wrote: 

Thank you!  

Tara 

  

On Tue, Jul 15, 2025 at 4:43 PM Heath Beckett <hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com> wrote: 

Hey Tara, 

 This would be something that the board would have to discuss and making a decision on.   I will be sure 

to present this to the board for consideration.   

 Thanks,  

Heath Beckett 

District Manager 

 

From: Tara Home <tstabie@gmail.com>  

Sent: Tuesday, July 15, 2025 4:28 PM 

To: wendy perez <wperez1763@gmail.com> 

Cc: Heath Beckett <hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com> 

Subject: Re: Drainage hole - needs clearing & pothole 

Hi Heath. I’m following up on this communication. Can you please provide an update? I cannot attend the 

meetings due to other commitments.   

 Thanks!  

 Tara 

   

On Jul 13, 2025, at 8:46 PM, Tara Stabie <tstabie@gmail.com> wrote: 

 One other item: Our townhome (TH) front entrances have consistently looked unkempt, and this directly 

impacts our property values, which could lead to legal action.  A strong first impression is imperative for 

potential buyers. 

Let's implement sustainable, maintenance-free landscaping with drought-tolerant plants and rocks. This 

will drastically improve our curb appeal and the attractiveness of homes for sale, while also bringing 

long-term cost savings to all residents through reduced maintenance. If we want to enhance our 

property values and distinguish our community, I highly recommend we move forward with this 

sustainable solution. 

l

mailto:tstabie@gmail.com
mailto:tstabie@gmail.com
mailto:hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com
mailto:tstabie@gmail.com
mailto:wperez1763@gmail.com
mailto:hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com
mailto:tstabie@gmail.com


Thanks! 

Tara  

  

On Sat, Jul 12, 2025 at 12:35 PM wendy perez <wperez1763@gmail.com> wrote: 

Good afternoon. Heath I know we took care of a pot hole in the past but I believe afterwards we found out 

it’s county responsibility?? Can you check into this so the residents aren’t paying again and if you find 

out otherwise we can add to the agenda for repair. Thx  

  

On Sat, Jul 12, 2025 at 11:14 AM Tara Stabie <tstabie@gmail.com> wrote: 

Hi Heath! Hope you are well! Two items to report: 

 1. There is a drainage hole across from the Charter School - end of Old-woods/Hovenweep Road that 

needs clearing so that the water can drain. This tends to flood, and with us being in hurricane season, I 

think we'd better be proactive.  

2. Another pothole - Location:  Hovenweep Road and Kaloko Road. We had one on Hovenweep last year 

that the CDD fixed.  

 Thanks for your help with this!!! 

 

Tara 

l

mailto:wperez1763@gmail.com
mailto:tstabie@gmail.com


UNION PARK EAST
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT STONEBRIER 

EXHIBIT 11
PENDING

l



UNION PARK EAST  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT STONEBRIER  

 
 
 
 

 
EXHIBIT 12 

 
  

l



From: Christina Reynolds <greyn2907@gmail.com>  

Sent: Saturday, October 11, 2025 7:16 AM 

To: Heath Beckett <hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com> 

Subject: Clubhouse 

 

Good morning,  

 

My name is Christina Reynolds, I have a rental over on Sand Creek Dr.  

I was just reaching out to find out if it would be possible to offer free yoga classes at the clubhouse. I was 

thinking maybe once a month on a Sunday morning. I initially reached out to Kai and was told that you 

would be the appropriate contact to ask. 

 

I thought it would be best to inquire with you as I do not know the legality of it, if any. I have my 200 

hour certification to teach and thought it would be good practice to offer free or by donation only classes 

to the Union Park families. Let me know what you think, thank you for your time! 

 

 

Christina Reynolds 

 

 You don't often get email from greyn2907@gmail.com. Learn why this is important   

l

mailto:greyn2907@gmail.com
mailto:hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com
mailto:greyn2907@gmail.com
https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification


UNION PARK EAST  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT STONEBRIER  

 
 
 
 

 
EXHIBIT 13 

 
  

l



From: Marianne O’Cain <lcmari10@aol.com>  

Sent: Wednesday, October 8, 2025 6:01 PM 

To: Heath Beckett <hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com> 

Subject: Request to setup booth 

 

My name is Marianne O’Cain, and I live in Union Park at 31999 Watoga Loop, Wesley Chapel, FL 

33543. I’ve noticed that our community often welcomes food trucks and ice cream trucks, which brings 

neighbors together in a fun way. 

 

I would love the opportunity to set up a small jewelry booth at the clubhouse area during special 

occasions, weekends, or on days when food trucks are present. I believe this would add to the community 

atmosphere and provide residents with another enjoyable option. 

 

The HOA recommended that I contact you directly regarding this request. Please let me know if this 

would be possible and if there are any specific requirements or guidelines I should follow. 

 

You can reach me at 813-697-5011 or by email at your convenience. 

 

Thank you very much for your time and consideration. 

 

Sincerely, 

Marianne O’Cain 

 

 You don't often get email from lcmari10@aol.com. Learn why this is important   

l

mailto:lcmari10@aol.com
mailto:hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com
mailto:lcmari10@aol.com
https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification


UNION PARK EAST  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT STONEBRIER  

 
 
 
 

 
EXHIBIT 14 

 
  

l



  

MINUTES OF MEETING 1 

UNION PARK EAST 2 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 3 

 A Special Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Union Park East Community 4 
Development District was held on Thursday, May 30, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. at Residence Inn, 5 
2867 Lajuana Blvd., Wesley Chapel, FL 33543.  The actions taken are summarized as 6 
follows: 7 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS: Roll Call 8 

 Ms. Dilley called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m. and conducted roll call. 9 

Present and constituting a quorum were: 10 

Wendy Perez (1) Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 11 
Vincent Pacifico (2) Board Supervisor, Chairman  12 
Richard Ramirez (4) Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 13 
Gerard Bianchi (5) Board Supervisor, Vice Chairman 14 

Also present were: 15 

Heather Dilley District Manager, Breeze 16 
Wes Hughes Field Manager, Breeze 17 
Meredith Hammock District Counsel, Kilinski Van Wyk PLLC 18 
Jennifer Kilinski District Counsel, Kilinski Van Wyk PLLC 19 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS: Audience Comments – Agenda Items 20 
(Limited to 3 minutes per individual for agenda 21 
items) 22 

Representatives from Floralawn, Florida Commercial Care, Yellowstone, and 23 
United Land Services announced themselves as present. 24 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS: Business Items 25 

A.  Exhibit 1:  Presentation of Proposals for Landscape Maintenance Services – 26 
Financial Summary 27 

➢ Exhibit 2:  Flora Lawn 28 
➢ Exhibit 3:  Florida Commercial Care 29 
➢ Exhibit 4:  Juniper 30 
➢ Exhibit 5:  Pine Lake 31 
➢ Exhibit 6:  Red Tree 32 
➢ Exhibit 7:  United Land Services 33 
➢ Exhibit 8:  Yellowstone 34 
Five-minute presentations were heard from representatives of Floralawn, 35 
Yellowstone, Florida Commercial Care, and United Land Service.  36 
Supervisors discussed the bid proposals. District Counsel instructed the 37 

l



Union Park East CDD May 30, 2024 
Special Meeting Page 2 of 2 

Board on the grading procedure and to only grade the bid proposal facts. The 38 
bids were graded as follows:  39 

96.29%  Floralawn  40 
82.36%  Yellowstone 41 
79.75%  Florida Commercial Care 42 
74.58%  Juniper 43 
67.62%  Pine Lake 44 
61.02%  United Land Service 45 
61.00%  Red Tree 46 

On a MOTION by Mr. Pacifico, SECONDED by Mr. Bianchi, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 47 
approved the ranking of the respondents and directed staff to enter negotiations with the 48 
top-ranked respondent, for the Union Park East Community Development District. 49 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Audience Comments – New Business 50 
(Limited to 3 minutes per individual for non-51 
agenda items) 52 

There being none, the next item followed. 53 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Supervisor Requests (Includes Next Meeting 54 
Agenda Item Requests) 55 

There being none, the next item followed. 56 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Adjournment 57 

On a MOTION by Mr. Pacifico, SECONDED by Mr. Bianchi, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 58 
adjourned the meeting at 8:31 p.m., for Union Park East Community Development District. 59 

*Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any 60 
matter considered at the meeting is advised that person may need to ensure that a verbatim 61 
record of the proceedings is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which such 62 
appeal is to be based. 63 

Meeting minutes were approved by vote of the Board of Supervisors at a publicly noticed 64 
meeting held on October 22, 2025. 65 

__________________________________ __________________________________ 66 
□ Heath Beckett, Secretary   □ Vincent Pacifico, Chair 67 
□ ___________________, Assistant Secretary   □ Gerard Bianchi, Vice Chair 68 

l



UNION PARK EAST  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT STONEBRIER  

 
 
 
 

 
EXHIBIT 15 

 
  

l



  

MINUTES OF MEETING 1 

UNION PARK EAST 2 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 3 

 The Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Union Park East Community 4 
Development District was held on Wednesday, September 24, 2025 at 6:30 p.m. at Fairfield 5 
Inn & Suites 2650 Lajuana Boulevard, Wesley Chapel, FL 33543.  The actions taken are 6 
summarized as follows: 7 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS: Roll Call 8 

 Mr. Beckett called the meeting to order and conducted roll call. 9 

Present and constituting a quorum were: 10 

Wendy Perez (1) Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 11 
Vincent Pacifico (2) Board Supervisor, Chairman  12 
Michelle Diman (3) Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 13 
Richard Ramirez (4) Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 14 
Gerard Bianchi (5) Board Supervisor, Vice Chairman 15 

Also present were: 16 

Heath Beckett District Manager, Vesta District Services 17 
Michael Bush Field Manager, Vesta District Services 18 
Savannah Hancock District Counsel, Kilinski Van Wyk PLLC 19 
Amy Palmer District Engineer, Lighthouse Engineering 20 

(virtually) 21 
Doug Fitzhenry Technician, Blue Water Aquatics (virtually) 22 
Casey Hallman Account Manager, Floralawn (joined in-progress) 23 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS: Audience Comments – Agenda Items 24 
(Limited to 3 minutes per individual for agenda 25 
items) 26 

There being none, the next item followed. 27 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS: Reports 28 

A. Exhibit 1:  Aquatic Maintenance – Blue Water Aquatics 29 

Mr. Fitzhenry provided an update on the pond conditions, he noted the three 30 
ponds with recurring problems, Q1, C2, and F7 were being treated, the 31 
Southern Naiad in ponds C2 and F7 is beneficial but is treated when it 32 
reaches the surface for aesthetic purposes, and he anticipated algae blooms 33 
to increase in the upcoming months due to many landscapers switching to 34 
dry fertilizer.  A proposal for fountain maintenance will be presented at a 35 
future meeting. 36 

B. Exhibit 2:  Landscape Maintenance – Casey Hallman, Floralawn 37 

l



Union Park East CDD September 24, 2025 
Regular Meeting Page 2 of 6 

A representative of Floralawn was not present at this point in the meeting.   38 

Supervisors noted trees impacted by the storm had been identified and the 39 
budget will accommodate addressing them, the report referenced another 40 
District, and the annuals had been installed on the Liberty Square island.   41 

An update was requested on the installation of bushes on the island at 42 
Liberty Square. 43 

Landscape Maintenance was further discussed during III.C. Field Manager Report 44 
after Mr. Hallman joined the meeting. 45 

C. Exhibit 3:  Field Manager – Michael Bush, Vesta District Services 46 

Mr. Bush’s presented the Field Manager report and responded to Supervisor 47 
questions.  He reviewed the various completed projects and advised of the 48 
items that had been ordered for current projects, including the baby 49 
changing station, court signs, soap dispenser, mailbox numbers, street signs 50 
(the missing speed limit sign was located), and weight pins for the gym 51 
equipment.  Mr. Beckett added that he had approved Blue Water Aquatics to 52 
replace a photocell on the Liberty Square fountain (approximately $230). 53 

Pricing for pool furniture repairs and replacements was presented and he 54 
will request quotes for pressure washing the sidewalk around the amenity 55 
center.  Light options for the amenity center entrance were reviewed and 56 
replacement of pet waste stations (estimated at 4 for $1,000) was 57 
discussed. 58 

Mr. Beckett requested audience comments on the pool chair. 59 

On a MOTION by Ms. Perez, SECONDED by Ms. Diman, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 60 
approved the repair of the reclining pool chairs in the amount of $1,050.00, for Union Park 61 
East Community Development District. 62 

Mr. Beckett requested audience comments on the purchase of pool deck 63 
tables. 64 

On a MOTION by Ms. Diman, SECONDED by Mr. Bianchi, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 65 
authorized Mr. Bush to purchase twelve (12) tables for the pool deck in a total amount not to 66 
exceed $2,200.00, for Union Park East Community Development District. 67 

Mr. Hallman was asked about the bush installation, he will check the 68 
approval was received and schedule the installation.   69 

Mr. Hallman discussed a renewal agreement for landscape maintenance 70 
and reviewed recent landscape activities.  Ms. Hancock advised the first year 71 
for the original landscape agreement ends September 30, 2025, and the 72 
Board could consider the first of three annual renewals.  With no changes to 73 
the terms proposed, an amendment would not be required.  Discussion 74 
followed on the installation of annuals as an additional service. 75 

l



Union Park East CDD September 24, 2025 
Regular Meeting Page 3 of 6 

Mr. Beckett requested public comments on the proposed landscape 76 
maintenance renewal. 77 

On a MOTION by Mr. Pacifico, SECONDED by Mr. Ramirez, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 78 
approved the first renewal of the landscape maintenance agreement with Floralawn, with 79 
no change to the contract terms, for Union Park East Community Development District. 80 

Mr. Beckett discussed available funds based on the unaudited August 2025 81 
Financial Statement which was forwarded to Supervisors.  Board consensus was to 82 
postpone consideration of the purchase of pet waste stations.  83 

Options for lighting the path to the gym were requested and discussed. 84 

D. District Counsel – Savannah Hancock, Kilinski Van Wyk 85 

Ms. Hancock reminded Supervisors to complete their required four hours of 86 
ethics training by December 31st. 87 

An update was requested on active litigation. 88 

E. District Engineer – Amy Palmer, Lighthouse Engineering 89 

Ms. Palmer advised that plans were submitted to Pasco County for the 90 
pickleball courts permit.  An ROW permit may be required.  She has 91 
completed a review of the pooling on the sidewalk and flooding, and will 92 
review the erosion areas to draft a plan for the Board at the next meeting. 93 

F. District Manager – Heath Beckett, Vesta District Services 94 

Mr. Beckett had reviewed the Reserve Study – upgrades for the security 95 
system and furniture were the only two items that were noted for FY 2026.  96 
He also confirmed that a “No Outlet” sign was posted at Liberty Square. 97 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Business Items 98 

A. Exhibit 4:  Adoption of Resolution 2025-19, Ratifying Actions Taken to 99 
Designate Date, Time and Place of Public Hearings and Publication of 100 
Notice of Hearings on Adoption of Amended and Restated Rules of 101 
Procedure (Reflecting Legislative Updates) 102 

Ms. Hancock advised this resolution rescheduled the public hearing to 103 
November 19 to allow for publication deadlines to be met. 104 

On a MOTION by Mr. Pacifico, SECONDED by Mr. Ramirez, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 105 
adopted Resolution 2025-19, Ratifying Actions Taken to Designate Date, Time and Place 106 
of Public Hearings and Publication of Notice of Hearings on Adoption of Amended and 107 
Restated Rules of Procedure (Reflecting Legislative Updates), for Union Park East 108 
Community Development District. 109 

B. Discussion on District’s Performance Measures and Standards 110 

1. Exhibit 5:  Consideration of Reporting of FY 2025 Achieved Goals and 111 
Objectives 112 

l



Union Park East CDD September 24, 2025 
Regular Meeting Page 4 of 6 

Board consensus was to report that all goals and objectives for FY 113 
2025 were achieved, Ms. Hancock affirmed the State had receive the 114 
District’s required financial reports. 115 

On a MOTION by Mr. Pacifico, SECONDED by Mr. Ramirez, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 116 
approved the Report of FY 2025 Achieved Goals and Objectives, for Union Park East 117 
Community Development District. 118 

2. Exhibit 6:  Adoption of FY 2026 Performance Measures/Standards and 119 
Annual Reporting Form 120 

On a MOTION by Mr. Pacifico, SECONDED by Ms. Perez, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 121 
approved the adoption of FY 2026 Performance Measures/Standards and Annual Reporting 122 
Form as presented, for Union Park East Community Development District. 123 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Consent Agenda 124 

A. Exhibit 7:  Acceptance of the Minutes of the Board of Supervisors Budget 125 
Workshop Held August 27, 2025 126 

B. Exhibit 8 :  Approval of the Minutes of the Board of Supervisors Regular 127 
Meeting Held August 27, 2025 128 

On a MOTION by Mr. Pacifico, SECONDED by Ms. Diman, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 129 
approved Consent Agenda – items A and B as presented, for Union Park East Community 130 
Development District. 131 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Supervisor Requests (Includes Next Meeting 132 
Agenda Item Requests) 133 

Ms. Hancock advised that Ms. Perez residency within the District was ending and 134 
she would no longer be eligible to hold her seat.  Ms. Hancock reviewed the process 135 
for appointing a Supervisor to fill the vacant seat if the remaining Supervisors 136 
wished to do so.  Supervisors thanked Ms. Perez for her service to the community. 137 

Board direction was given to staff to notice the open seat on the District’s website. 138 

Ms. Diman advised the Liberty Square HOA has requested to use the land by the 139 
mailboxes for their Thanksgiving event.  Ms. Hancock explained that a continuing 140 
agreement could be executed to allow HOA community events to be approved or 141 
denied by the District Manager for the term of the agreement, pending insurance 142 
requirements.  This will be considered at the October meeting. 143 

Discussion followed on the area at the end of Pez Landing and protection of the 144 
District’s irrigation in that area.  145 

l



Union Park East CDD September 24, 2025 
Regular Meeting Page 5 of 6 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Audience Comments – New Business 146 
(Limited to 3 minutes per individual for non-147 
agenda items) 148 

Comments were heard on pool access, utilizing District property for future events 149 
hosted by the Townhomes HOA, the bridge condition and maintenance, and the 150 
depression by the townhouse bridge (which Mr. Bush had patched earlier in the day). 151 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Next Meeting Quorum Check 152 

The next Union Park East Community Development District meeting is scheduled for 6:00 153 
p.m. on October 22, 2025 at Fairfield Inn & Suites, 2650 Lajuana Boulevard, Wesley 154 
Chapel, FL 33543. 155 

Quorum was confirmed for the next meeting. 156 

On a MOTION by Ms. Diman, SECONDED by Mr. Pacifico, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 157 
accepted Ms. Perez’s resignation effective at the adjournment of the September 24, 2025 158 
regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, for Union Park East Community Development 159 
District. 160 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Action Items Summary 161 

District Manager 162 

• Find out status of shrub installation at Liberty Square 163 
• Follow up with FTI on the new camera 164 
• Agenda item:  Liberty Square HOA request use of land by mailboxes 165 

for community event - add this to the agenda for next month – get with 166 
Savannah on this 167 

Field Manager 168 

• Ms. Perez says that lighting for the path that leads to the gym around 169 
the amenity center – Bush to look into this 170 

District Engineer 171 

• Look at erosion and report back to the Board next week 172 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Adjournment 173 

On a MOTION by Mr. Pacifico, SECONDED by Mr. Ramirez, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 174 
adjourned the meeting at 7:50 p.m., for Union Park East Community Development District. 175 

*Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any 176 
matter considered at the meeting is advised that person may need to ensure that a verbatim 177 
record of the proceedings is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which such 178 
appeal is to be based.  179 

l



Union Park East CDD September 24, 2025 
Regular Meeting Page 6 of 6 

Meeting minutes were approved at a meeting by vote of the Board of Supervisors at a 180 
publicly noticed meeting held on October 22, 2025. 181 

__________________________________ __________________________________ 182 
□ Heath Beckett, Secretary   □ Vincent Pacifico, Chair 183 
□ ___________________, Assistant Secretary   □ Gerard Bianchi, Vice Chair 184 

l



UNION PARK EAST  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT STONEBRIER  

 
 
 
 

 
EXHIBIT 16 

 
  

l



Union Park East

Community Development District

Financial Statements - Unaudited

September 30, 2025

l



General Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Construction
Fund 2017A-1 2019A-1 2019A-2 2021 Fund Total

1 ASSETS

2 Cash - Operating Accounts 321,586$          -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   321,586$       
3 Cash - Restricted -                       -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
4 Money Markey - Operating 296,453            -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     296,453         
5 Money Markey - Restricted 136,917            -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     136,917         
6 Investments: -                     
7      Revenue Trust Fund -                       405,466         313,476         36,326           80,684           -                     835,951         
8      Interest Fund -                       -                     -                     -                     2                    -                     2                    
9      Reserve Fund -                       411,200         343,119         52,500           43,493           -                     850,312         

10      Prepayment Fund -                       1,072             250                1,313             100                -                     2,735             
11     Construction Fund -                       -                     -                     -                     -                     46,072           46,072           
12 Accounts Receivable 5,008                -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     5,008             
13 Assessments Receivable - On Roll 69,217              23,878           20,099           4,330             9,846             -                     127,369.65    
14 Assessments Receivable - Off Roll -                       -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
15 Undeposited Funds -                       8,005             6,749             1,451             1,489             
16 Due from Other Funds -                       -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
17 Deposits 3,360                -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     3,360             
18 Prepaid Items 2,038                -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     2,038             
19 TOTAL ASSETS 834,580$          849,620$       683,692$       95,919$         135,614$       46,072$         2,627,804$    

20 LIABILITIES

21 Accounts Payable 32,969$            -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   32,969$         
22 Due to Other Funds -                       -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
23 Accrued Expenses -                       -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
24 Deferred Revenue - On Roll 69,217              23,878           20,099           4,330             9,846             -                     127,369.65    
24 TOTAL LIABILITIES 102,186            23,878           20,099           4,330             9,846             -                     160,338.23    

-                     
25 FUND BALANCE -                     
26 Nonspendable -                     
27 Assigned - Asset Reserves -                     
28 Assigned - Operating Reserves -                     
29 Restricted 825,743         663,594         91,589           125,767         46,072           1,752,764      
30 Unassigned 732,394            732,394         
31 TOTAL FUND BALANCE 732,394            825,743         663,594         91,589           125,767         46,072           2,485,159      

32 TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE 834,580$          849,620$       683,692$       95,919$         135,614$       46,072$         2,645,497$    

Union Park East CDD
Balance Sheet

September 30, 2025

l



FY2025 FY2025 FY2025 Over (Under) %
Adopted Actual Actual Annual of
Budget September Year-to-Date Budget Budget

1 REVENUES
2    General Fund Revenue 1,163,925$   -$                    1,168,669$          4,744$             100.41%
3   Interest 1,289               15,106                 15,106             #DIV/0!
4   Miscellaneous -                      301                      301                  #DIV/0!
5 Total Revenue 1,163,925$   1,289$             1,184,077$          20,152$           101.73%

6 EXPENDITURES
7 GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE
8    Supervisor Compensation 14,000          911                  10,764                 (3,236)              76.89%
9    Payroll Taxes 1,071            -                      588                      (483)                 54.90%

10    Payroll Processing 770               -                      450                      (320)                 58.44%
11    Management Consulting Services 48,000          3,500               49,631                 1,631               103.40%
12    Bank Fees 300               -                      1                          (300)                 0.17%
13    Auditing Services 4,200            -                      -                           (4,200)              0.00%
14    Travel Per Diem 100               -                      -                           (100)                 0.00%
15    Insurance 33,193          2,751               30,262                 (2,931)              91.17%
16    Regulatory & Permit Fees 175               -                      200                      25                    114.29%
17    Legal Advertisements 2,500            -                      1,008                   (1,492)              40.32%
18    Engineering Services 25,000          4,707               50,762                 25,762             203.05%
19    Legal Services 50,000          2,586               63,415                 13,415             126.83%
20    Website Hosting 2,015            -                      1,848                   (167)                 91.73%
21    Administrative Contingency 5,000            -                      4,557                   (443)                 91.15%
22 TOTAL GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE 186,324        14,455             213,486               27,162             114.58%

23 DEBT ADMINISTRATION
24    Dissemination Agent 6,500            -                      9,000                   2,500               138.46%
25    Trustee Fees 15,085          -                      23,497                 8,412               155.76%
26    Arbitrage 1,900            475                  1,425                   (475)                 75.00%
27 TOTAL DEBT ADMINISTRATION 23,485          475                  33,922                 10,437             144.44%

28 PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT
29    Comprehensive Field Tech Service 18,000          1,333               17,856                 (144)                 99.20%
30    Streetpole Lighting 102,000        -                      66,530                 (35,470)            65.23%
31    Electricity (Irrigation & Pond Pumps) 32,000          -                      15,009                 (16,991)            46.90%
32    Landscape Maintenance 186,974        13,918             165,616               (21,358)            88.58%
33    Landscape Maintenance - Phases 7 & 8 40,272          250                  250                      (40,022)            0.62%
34    Irrigation Maintenance 18,000          691                  10,045                 (7,955)              55.80%
35    Pond Maintenance 34,526          1,965               23,609                 (10,917)            68.38%
36    Fountain Maintenance 9,400            -                      5,342                   (4,059)              56.82%
37    Pet Waste Removal 10,000          917                  10,063                 63                    100.63%
38    Rust Control 19,200          -                      14,175                 (5,025)              73.83%
39    Physical Environment Contingency 50,000          -                      171,354               121,354           342.71%
40    Increase in Operating Reserves 50,000          -                      50,000                 -                       100.00%
41    Increase in Asset Reserves 103,500        -                      103,500               -                       100.00%
42 TOTAL PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT 673,872        19,073             653,349               (20,523)            96.95%

Union Park East CDD
General Fund

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance
For the period from October 1, 2024 through September 30, 2025

l



FY2025 FY2025 FY2025 Over (Under) %
Adopted Actual Actual Annual of
Budget September Year-to-Date Budget Budget

Union Park East CDD
General Fund

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance
For the period from October 1, 2024 through September 30, 2025

43 AMENIY CENTER OPERATIONS
44    Pool Service Contract 48,000          3,915               39,754                 (8,246)              82.82%
45    Pool Maintenance & Repair 5,000            -                      9,805                   4,805               196.10%
46    Pool Permit 275               -                      280                      5                      101.82%
47    Amenity Management 8,000            583                  7,322                   (678)                 91.53%
48    Amenity Center Cleaning & Maintenance 18,000          2,160               20,400                 2,400               113.33%
49    Amenity Center Internet 4,224            358                  4,346                   122                  102.89%
50    Amenity Center Electricity 19,200          (3,016)             46,245                 27,045             240.86%
51    Amenity Center Water 10,000          273                  5,555                   (4,445)              55.55%
52    Amenity Center Pest Control 975               75                    1,375                   400                  141.03%
53    Refuse Service 2,950            -                      2,706                   (244)                 91.72%
54    Landscape Maintenance - Infill 4,000            -                      -                           (4,000)              0.00%
55    Security Monitoring 54,434          6,125               41,637                 (12,798)            76.49%
56    Pool Monitors 35,000          2,843               15,649                 (19,351)            44.71%
57    Community Events & Decorations 25,000          -                      -                           (25,000)            0.00%
58    Misc Amenity Center Repairs & Contingency 45,186          595                  3,884                   (41,302)            8.60%
59 TOTAL AMENITY CENTER OPERATIONS 280,244        13,911             198,957               (81,287)            70.99%

60 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,163,925$  47,914$           1,099,713$          (64,212)$          94.48%

61 EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 334,215        (46,625)           84,363                 84,363             25.24%

62 Fund Balance Beginning 494,531               
63 Increase in Fund Balance for Operating Reserves 50,000          50,000                 
64 Increase in Fund Balance for  Asset Reserves 103,500        103,500               
65 FUND BALANCE ENDING 487,715$      (46,625)$         732,394$             84,363$           

l



FY2025 FY2025 Over (Under) %
Adopted Actual Annual of
Budget Year-to-Date Budget Budget

1 REVENUE
2 Special Assessments - Net 420,281$    415,903$               (4,378)$         99%
3 Interest 29,550                   29,550          #DIV/0!
4 Miscellaneous -                            -                    -                      
5 TOTAL REVENUE 420,281$    445,452$               25,171$        105.99%

6 EXPENDITURES
7 County Assessment Collection Fees 8,756          -                            (8,756)           0%
8 Interest Expense
9                 May 1, 2025 144,113      143,838                 (275)              100%

10                 November 1, 2025 144,113      146,850                 2,738            102%
11 Principal Retirement
12                 May 1, 2025 -                  115,000                 115,000        #DIV/0!
13                 November 1, 2025 120,000      -                            (120,000)       0%
14 Prepayment -                  5,000                     5,000            #DIV/0!
15 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 416,981      410,688                 (6,293)           98%

16 REVENUES OVER/(UNDER Expenditures 3,300          34,765                   1053%

17 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES)
18 Transfers In -                  797                        797               #DIV/0!
19 Transfers Out -                            -                    -                      
20 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES) -                  797                        797               #DIV/0!

21 FUND BALANCE BEGINNING 790,181                 

22 NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 3,300          35,562                   797               

23 FUND BALANCE, ENDING 3,300$        825,743$               797$             

Union Park East CDD
Debt Service Series 2017 A1

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance
For the period from October 1, 2024 through September 30, 2025

l



FY2025 FY2025 Over (Under) %

Adopted Actual Annual of

Budget Year-to-Date Budget Budget

1 REVENUE

2 Special Assessments - Net 355,523$     350,238$      -$                  99%

3 Interest -                   23,590          23,590          #DIV/0!

4 Miscellaneous -                   -                    -                    -               

5 TOTAL REVENUE 355,523$     373,827$      23,590$        105.15%

6 EXPENDITURES

7 County Assessment Collection Fees 7,407           -                    (7,407)           0%

8 Interest Expense

                  *November 1,2024 -                    #DIV/0!

9                 May 1, 2025 119,300       121,235        1,935            102%

10                 November 1, 2025 119,300       119,047        (253)              100%

11 Principal Retirement

12                 May 1, 2025 -                   -                    #DIV/0!

13                 November 1, 2025 105,000       100,000        (5,000)           95%

14 Prepayment 5,000            

15 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 351,007       345,282        (10,725)         #DIV/0!

16 Revenues Over/(Under) Expenditures 4,517           28,546          34,315          632.01%

17 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES)

18 Transfers In -                   -                    -                    #DIV/0!

19 Transfers Out -                   -                    -                    #DIV/0!

20 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES) -                   -                    -                    #DIV/0!

21 FUND BALANCE BEGINNING 635,048        

22 NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 4,517           28,546          34,315          

23 FUND BALANCE, ENDING 4,517$         663,594$      34,315$        

Union Park East CDD
Debt Service Series 2019 A1

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance
For the period from October 1, 2024 through September 30, 2025

l



FY2025 FY2025 Over (Under) %

Adopted Actual Annual of

Budget Year-to-Date Budget Budget

1 REVENUE

2 Special Assessments - Net 76,546$      75,406$        -$                 98.51%

3 Interest 3,447            3,447            #DIV/0!

4 Miscellaneous -                   -                   #DIV/0!

5 TOTAL REVENUE 76,546$      78,852$        3,447$          103.01%

6 EXPENDITURES

7 County Assessment Collection Fees 1,595          -                   (1,595)          0.00%

8 Interest Expense #DIV/0!

9                 May 1, 2025 27,169        27,038          (131)             99.52%

10                 November 1, 2025 26,644        27,038          394               101.48%

11 Principal Retirement #DIV/0!

12                 May 1, 2025 20,000        20,000          -                   100.00%

13                 November 1, 2025 -                  -                   #DIV/0!

14 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 75,407        74,075          (1,332)          #DIV/0!

15 REVENUES OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 1,139          4,777            3,639            419.62%

16 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES)

17 Transfers In -                   -                   #DIV/0!

18 Transfers Out -                   -                   #DIV/0!

19 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES) -                  -                   -                   #DIV/0!

20 FUND BALANCE BEGINNING 86,812          

21 Net Changes in fund balance 1,139          4,777            3,639            

22 FUND BALANCE, ENDING 1,139$        91,589$        3,639$          

Union Park East CDD
Debt Service Series 2019 A2

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance
For the period from October 1, 2024 through September 30, 2025

l



FY2025 FY2025 Over (Under) %

Adopted Actual Annual of

Budget Year-to-Date Budget Budget

1 REVENUE

2 Special Assessments 89,086$      95,670$        -$                 107.39%

3 Interest -                  4,757            #DIV/0!

4 Miscellaneous -                  -                   #DIV/0!

5 TOTAL REVENUE 89,086$      100,426$      -$                 112.73%

6 EXPENDITURES

7 County Assessment Collection Fees 1,856          -                   0.00%

8 Interest Expense #DIV/0!

9                   *November 1, 2024 25,609          

10                 May 1, 2025 25,783        25,709          99.71%

11                 November 1, 2025 25,363        0.00%

12 Principal Retirement #DIV/0!

13                 May 1, 2025 35,000        35,000          100.00%

14                 November 1, 2025 -                  #DIV/0!

15 Prepayment 5,000            

16 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 88,001        91,318          -                   #DIV/0!

17 REVENUES OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 1,085          9,109            839.52%

18 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES)

19 Transfers In -                   #DIV/0!

20 Transfers Out -                   #DIV/0!

21 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES) -                  -                   -                   #DIV/0!

22 FUND BALANCE BEGINNING 116,659        

23 Net Changes in fund balance 1,085          9,109            -                   

24 FUND BALANCE, ENDING 1,085$        125,767$      -$                 

Union Park East CDD
Debt Service Series 2021

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance
For the period from October 1, 2024 through September 30, 2025

l



FY2025 FY2025 Over (Under) %

Adopted Actual Annual of

Budget Year-to-Date Budget Budget

1 REVENUES

2 Developer Contributions -$                -$                 -$                 #DIV/0!

3 Interest -                  1,870            1,870            #DIV/0!

4 Miscellaneous -                  -                   -                   #DIV/0!

5 TOTAL REVENUES -$                1,870$          1,870$          #DIV/0!

6 EXPENDITURES

7 CIP -                  -                   -                   #DIV/0!

8 TOTAL EXPENDITURES -                  -                   -                   #DIV/0!

9 REVENUES OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES -                  1,870            #DIV/0!

10 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES)

11 Transfers In -                  -                   -                   #DIV/0!

12 Transfers Out -                  797               797               #DIV/0!

13 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES) -                  (797)             (797)             #DIV/0!

14 FUND BALANCE BEGINNING 44,999          

15 Net Changes in fund balance -                  1,073            (797)             

16 FUND BALANCE, ENDING -$                46,072$        (797)$           

Union Park East CDD
Construction

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance
For the period from October 1, 2024 through September 30, 2025

l



Date Num Name Memo Deposits Payments Balance

-8,383.93

06/06/2025 100723 JCS Investigations Outstanding Checks at Transition 4,312.00 -12,695.93

06/06/2025 100722 Kai Connected, LLC Outstanding check at  transition 2,166.67 -14,862.60

06/06/2025 ACH060625 Gerard Bianchi Outstanding Checks at Transition 184.70 -15,047.30

06/06/2025 02ACH060625 Michelle Diman Outstanding Checks at Transition 184.70 -15,232.00

06/06/2025 03ACH060625 Vincent S Pacifico Outstanding Checks at Transition 184.70 -15,416.70

06/06/2025 04ACH060625 Wendy Ann Perez Outstanding Checks at Transition 184.70 -15,601.40

06/06/2025 05ACH060625 Richard Ramirez Outstanding Checks at Transition 184.70 -15,786.10

06/06/2025 06ACH060625 Engage PEO Outstanding Checks at Transfer 203.00 -15,989.10

06/11/2025 Deposit 4,251.96 -11,737.14

06/11/2025 100724 U.S. Bank Outstanding Check at Transition 8,253.75 -19,990.89

06/13/2025 100725 Blue Wave Lighting, LLC Outstanding Check at Transition 780.00 -20,770.89

06/16/2025 Deposit 3,017.51 -17,753.38

06/19/2025 061925ACH IPFS Corporation Outstanding Check at Transition 2,751.09 -20,504.47

06/20/2025 5004 Mike Fasano, Pasco Co Tax Coll Balance at transition from Kai 323.54 -20,828.01

06/20/2025 100726 U.S. Bank Outstanding Check at Transition 8,253.75 -29,081.76

06/20/2025 100727 Kai Connected, LLC Outstanding check at  transition 3,098.61 -32,180.37

06/23/2025 1 Balance at transition from Kai 534,367.54 502,187.17

06/25/2025 100729 Florida Dept of Health Balance at transition from Kai 280.00 501,907.17

06/30/2025 25 Clear Outstanding Checks 39,126.30 541,033.47

06/30/2025 Restricted Cash that is part of the General Fund 13,763.34 554,796.81

06/30/2025 End of Month 594,526.65 31,345.91 554,796.81

07/10/2025 ACH071025 Deluxe Business Systems Checks Ordered by Skye 278.68 554,518.13

07/15/2025 Deposit 8,254.97 562,773.10

07/17/2025 5000 Cooper Pools 21,452.88 541,320.22

07/17/2025 5001 Blue Water Aquatics, Inc. Balance at transition from Kai 1,965.00 539,355.22

07/17/2025 5003 Tampa Bay Poo Patrol Balance at transition from Kai 1,526.00 537,829.22

07/17/2025 5002 ECS Integrations LLC Balance at transition from Kai 220.00 537,609.22

07/18/2025 071825PR1 Engage PEO BOS Meeting 6.25.25 203.00 537,406.22

07/18/2025 071825PR2 Gerard Bianchi BOS Meeting 6.25.25 184.70 537,221.52

07/18/2025 071825PR3 Michelle Diman BOS Meeting 6.25.25 184.70 537,036.82

07/18/2025 071825PR74 Richard Ramirez BOS Meeting 6.25.25 184.70 536,852.12

07/18/2025 071825PR5 Vincent S Pacifico BOS Meeting 6.25.25 184.70 536,667.42

07/18/2025 071825PR Wendy Ann Perez BOS Meeting 6.25.25 184.70 536,482.72

07/18/2025 Deposit 1,126.50 537,609.22

07/21/2025 200002 Catherinne ProCleaners LLC 5,220.00 532,389.22

07/21/2025 5005 Floralawn Balance at transition from Kai 29,139.28 503,249.94

07/21/2025 200001 Vesta District Services Invoice: 427222 (Reference: Monthly management fees.  )  Invoice: 427194 (Re  8,072.21 495,177.73

07/21/2025 200000 ECS Integrations LLC The rex button on the pool deck has been replaced and the closer on the door le    220.00 494,957.73

07/21/2025 5004 Mike Fasano, Pasco Co Tax Coll Tax Collector 323.54 494,634.19

07/22/2025 072225PR1 Engage PEO 1,126.50 493,507.69

07/24/2025 02ACH072425 TECO 1611 RANCHETTE RD  05.09.25- 06.09.25 751.31 492,756.38

07/24/2025 03ACH072425 TECO 1241 WYNDFIELDS BLVD PH 7B  05.15.25- 06.13.25 721.01 492,035.37

07/24/2025 04ACH072425 TECO OLDWOODS AVE PH 8C  05.15.25- 06.13.25 610.09 491,425.28

07/24/2025 05ACH072425 TECO 1393 WYNDFIELDS BLVD 05.15.25- 06.13.25 357.37 491,067.91

07/24/2025 200003 Catherinne ProCleaners LLC Invoice: 1187 (Reference: Sanitizing wet gym wipe.  ) 300.00 490,767.91

07/24/2025 200004 Floralawn Invoice: 33187 (Reference: Landscape maintenance Jul25.  ) 13,917.80 476,850.11

Union Park East CDD

Check Register 

l



07/24/2025 200005 Cooper Pools Invoice: 2025-937 (Reference: Black Algae Treatment / Removal and QT SILVE  1,140.00 475,710.11

07/24/2025 200006 Tampa Bay Poo Patrol Invoice: 3242 (Reference: Pet waste station May25.  ) 763.00 474,947.11

07/24/2025 200007 Vesta District Services Invoice: 427187 (Reference: Monthly contracted management fees Jun23- Jun3   1,288.89 473,658.22

07/24/2025 200008 Kai Connected, LLC Invoice: 4642 (Reference: Billable expenses.  ) 1,462.96 472,195.26

07/24/2025 5006 Image 360 Ybor City 5,113.78 467,081.48

07/25/2025 200009 Keeler Landscaping Inc. Invoice: 5082 (Reference: Vinyl Fence.  ) 2,852.00 464,229.48

07/28/2025 01ACH072825 PASCO County Utilities  1549 BERING ROAD  05.08.25- 06.06.25 447.09 463,782.39

07/30/2025 Deposit 5,572.21 469,354.60

07/30/2025 200010 Kai Connected, LLC Invoice: 4589 (Reference: Professional Management Services.  ) 3,098.61 466,255.99

07/30/2025 200011 Blue Wave Lighting, LLC Invoice: 16425 (Reference: Lighting issues at front entrance to community.  ) 780.00 465,475.99

07/30/2025 200012 Blue Water Aquatics, Inc. Invoice: 33831 (Reference: Pond / Waterway Treatment.  ) 1,965.00 463,510.99

07/30/2025 200013 ECS Integrations LLC Invoice: 102863 (Reference: The tech cleaned and checked all cameras and vid   220.00 463,290.99

07/30/2025 Deposit 2,500.00 465,790.99

07/31/2025 Deposit 5,113.78 470,904.77

07/31/2025 Deposit 220.00 471,124.77

07/31/2025 End of Month 22,787.46 106,459.50 471,124.77

08/01/2025 5007 Image 360 Ybor City Deposit of returned check 5,113.78 466,010.99

08/05/2025 06ACH080525 TECO 1329 WYNDFIELDS BLVD 05.15.25- 06.13.25 383.52 465,627.47

08/05/2025 07ACH080525 TECO 1195 WYNDFIELDS BLVD 05.15.25- 06.13.25 377.49 465,249.98

08/05/2025 07ACH080525 TECO 1241 WYNDFIELDS BLVD PH 8B 05.15.25- 06.13.25 1,053.79 464,196.19

08/05/2025 09ACH080525 TECO 1169 MANZANAR PL, FOUNTAIN  05.15.25- 06.13.25 372.47 463,823.72

08/05/2025 10ACH080525 TECO 1549 BERING RD  05.15.25- 06.13.25 1,244.16 462,579.56

08/05/2025 11ACH080525 TECO 1568 WYNDFIELDS BLVD, WELL  05.15.25- 06.13.25 23.60 462,555.96

08/05/2025 12ACH080525 TECO 32803 CUMBERLAND LN, WELL  05.15.25- 06.13.25 70.66 462,485.30

08/05/2025 13ACH080525 TECO 32755 CUMBERLAND LN  05.15.25- 06.13.25 362.74 462,122.56

08/05/2025 14ACH080525 TECO 1147 MONTGOMERY BELL RD, WELL  05.15.25- 06.13.25 77.03 462,045.53

08/05/2025 15ACH080525 TECO 1756 WYNFIELDS BL 05.15.25- 06.13.25 171.03 461,874.50

08/05/2025 16ACH080525 TECO 1548 WYNDFIELDS BLVD 05.15.25- 06.13.25 5,178.83 456,695.67

08/05/2025 17ACH080525 TECO 1758 BERING RD 05.16.25- 06.16.25 372.18 456,323.49

08/05/2025 01ACH080525 IPFS Corporation GAA-D59251 Conf# 23360375 ( Need Back up) 2,751.09 453,572.40

08/05/2025 5008 Vesta District Services Vesta invoice 427222 5,572.21 448,000.19

08/08/2025 5009 Vesta District Services Vesta inv# 427194 2,500.00 445,500.19

08/08/2025 200014 Cooper Pools Invoice: 2025-1032 (Reference: Aug25 Commercial maintenance.  )  Invoice: 20  3,915.00 441,585.19

08/08/2025 200015 Tampa Bay Poo Patrol Invoice: 3926 (Reference: Pet waste station maintenance.  ) 916.67 440,668.52

08/08/2025 200016 Vesta Property Services, Inc. Invoice: 427967 (Reference: pool monitor.  ) 2,414.50 438,254.02

08/08/2025 200017 ECS Integrations LLC Invoice: 102880 (Reference: Amenity Access Management.  )  Invoice: 102883 460.50 437,793.52

08/08/2025 080825BOS1 Engage PEO BOS Meeting 7/23/25 203.00 437,590.52

08/08/2025 080825BOS2 Gerard Bianchi BOS Meeting 7/23/25 184.70 437,405.82

08/08/2025 080825BOS3 Michelle Diman BOS Meeting 7/23/25 184.70 437,221.12

08/08/2025 080825BOS4 Richard Ramirez BOS Meeting 7/23/25 184.70 437,036.42

08/08/2025 080825BOS5 Vincent S Pacifico BOS Meeting 7/23/25 184.70 436,851.72

08/08/2025 080825BOS6 Wendy Ann Perez BOS Meeting 7/23/25 184.70 436,667.02

08/12/2025 200018 Blue Water Aquatics, Inc. Invoice: 33598 (Reference: Pond/Waterway Treatment plus late fee.  ) 1,994.47 434,672.55

08/12/2025 200019 Catherinne ProCleaners LLC Invoice: 1197 (Reference: #351750 - Annual Rotation-August.  ) 1,860.00 432,812.55

08/13/2025 Deposit 300.00 433,112.55

08/14/2025 01ACH081425 Spectrum Business 734.19 432,378.36

08/18/2025 200020 Vesta District Services Invoice: 428135 (Reference: Management Fees Aug 25.  ) 5,572.21 426,806.15

08/20/2025 200021 AlphaGraphics Tampa Print Invoice: 251710 (Reference: Mailings.  ) 1,555.43 425,250.72

08/21/2025 5010 U.S. Bank Trustee Fees, Extraordinary Services & Incidential Expenses 7/1/25 - 6/30/26 4,790.63 420,460.09

08/21/2025 200022 Vesta District Services Invoice: 428061 (Reference: Billable Expenses - Jul 2025.  ) 486.16 419,973.93

08/22/2025 01ACH082225 TECO 1758 BERING RD 06.17.25- 07.16.25 355.75 419,618.18

l



08/22/2025 02ACH082225 TECO 1548 WYNDFIELDS BLVD 06.14.25- 07.15.25 5,256.51 414,361.67

08/22/2025 03ACH082225 TECO 1756 WYNFIELDS BL 06.14.25- 07.15.25 133.49 414,228.18

08/22/2025 04ACH082225 TECO 1147 MONTGOMERY BELL RD, WELL  06.14.25- 07.15..25 82.08 414,146.10

08/22/2025 05ACH082225 TECO 32755 CUMBERLAND LN  06.14.25- 07.15.25 394.02 413,752.08

08/22/2025 06ACH082225 TECO 32803 CUMBERLAND LN, WELL  06.14.25- 07.15.25 152.92 413,599.16

08/22/2025 07ACH082225 TECO 1568 WYNDFIELDS BLVD, WELL  06.14.25- 07.15.25 29.87 413,569.29

08/22/2025 08ACH082225 TECO 1549 BERING RD  06.14.25- 07.15.25 1,259.42 412,309.87

08/22/2025 09ACH082225 TECO 1169 MANZANAR PL, FOUNTAIN  06.14.25- 07.15.25 402.40 411,907.47

08/22/2025 10ACH082225 TECO 1241 WYNDFIELDS BLVD PH 8B 06.14.25- 07.15.25 1,069.60 410,837.87

08/22/2025 11ACH082225 TECO 1195 WYNDFIELDS BLVD 06.14.25- 07.15.25 408.18 410,429.69

08/22/2025 12ACH082225 TECO 1329 WYNDFIELDS BLVD 06.14.25- 07.15.25 414.32 410,015.37

08/22/2025 13ACH082225 TECO 1393 WYNDFIELDS BLVD 06.14.25- 07.15.25 387.10 409,628.27

08/22/2025 14ACH082225 TECO OLDWOODS AVE PH 8C  06.14.25- 07.15.25 619.24 409,009.03

08/22/2025 15ACH082225 TECO 1241 WYNDFIELDS BLVD PH 7B  06.14.25- 07.15.25 731.83 408,277.20

08/22/2025 16ACH082225 TECO 1611 RANCHETTE RD  06.10.25- 07.09.25 762.58 407,514.62

08/25/2025 200023 Floralawn Invoice: 33999 (Reference: Irrigation Repair from Inspection (July, 2025).  ) 285.14 407,229.48

08/25/2025 01ACH082525 PASCO County Utilities  1549 BERING ROAD 06.06.25- 07.08.25 392.17 406,837.31

08/26/2025 200024 Kilinski Van Wyk PLLC Invoice: 12957 (Reference: Legal services.  ) 7,122.80 399,714.51

08/31/2025 End of Month 300.00 71,710.26 399,714.51

09/03/2025 01ACH090325 IPFS Corporation GAA-D59251 Conf# 23539262 ( Need Back up) 2,751.09 396,963.42

09/04/2025 200025 Cooper Pools Invoice: 2025-1072 (Reference: Scum Gutter Grate and Monthly Commercial Ma   3,915.00 393,048.42

09/04/2025 200026 Tampa Bay Poo Patrol Invoice: 4134 (Reference: Pet Waste Station Maintenance.  ) 916.67 392,131.75

09/04/2025 200027 Blue Water Aquatics, Inc. Invoice: 33997 (Reference: Pond / Waterway Treatment.  ) 1,965.00 390,166.75

09/04/2025 200028 ECS Integrations LLC Invoice: 102997 (Reference: Rekey locks on site with 5 new keys.  ) 595.00 389,571.75

09/04/2025 200029 Floralawn Invoice: 33761 (Reference: Landscape Maintenance Per Agreement PO: OM-U     13,917.80 375,653.95

09/04/2025 01ACH090425 TECO 1611 RANCHETTE RD 07.10.25- 08.07.25 762.75 374,891.20

09/09/2025 200030 Vesta District Services Invoice: 428463 (Reference: Management fees.  ) 5,416.66 369,474.54

09/09/2025 200031 Vesta Property Services, Inc. Invoice: 428545 (Reference: pool monitor.  ) 2,308.68 367,165.86

09/09/2025 200032 Lighthouse Engineering Inc. Invoice: 1 (Reference: GENERAL ENGINEERING CONTRACT.  ) 4,706.50 362,459.36

09/10/2025 01ACH091025 PASCO County Utilities  1549 BERING ROAD 7.8.25- 8.6.25 336.76 362,122.60

09/10/2025 02ACH091025 TECO 1548 WYNDFIELDS BLVD 07.16.25- 08.13.25 5,516.62 356,605.98

09/10/2025 03ACH091025 TECO 1756 WYNFIELDS BL 07.16.25- 08.13.25 235.98 356,370.00

09/10/2025 04ACH091025 TECO 1147 MONTGOMERY BELL RD, WELL 07.16.25- 08.13.25 103.62 356,266.38

09/10/2025 05ACH091025 TECO 32755 CUMBERLAND LN  06.16.25- 08.13.25 398.21 355,868.17

09/10/2025 06ACH091025 TECO 32803 CUMBERLAND LN, WELL  07.16.25- 08.13.25 175.55 355,692.62

09/11/2025 01ACH091125 TECO 1568 WYNDFIELDS BLVD, WELL  07.16.25- 08.13.25 401.11 355,291.51

09/11/2025 02ACH091125 Spectrum Business 1549 Bering Rd 08.21.25- 09.20.25 382.62 354,908.89

09/11/2025 200033 Florida Training & Investigations Invoice: 25202107 (Reference: Patrol service 7/21/25- 7/27/25.  )  Invoice: 2520  6,125.00 348,783.89

09/11/2025 200034 Florida Fountains & Equipment, LLC Invoice: CL-1022 (Reference: cleaning of (7) fountains.  ) 1,355.00 347,428.89

09/11/2025 200035 Floralawn Invoice: 34494 (Reference: leaking main line on the Blvd. 18039.  ) 690.63 346,738.26

09/12/2025 091225BOS1 Engage PEO BOS Meeting 8/27/25 172.40 346,565.86

09/12/2025 091225BOS2 Gerard Bianchi BOS Meeting 8/27/25 184.70 346,381.16

09/12/2025 091225BOS3 Michelle Diman BOS Meeting 8/27/25 184.70 346,196.46

09/12/2025 091225BOS4 Richard Ramirez BOS Meeting 8/27/25 184.70 346,011.76

09/12/2025 091225BOS5 Vincent S Pacifico BOS Meeting 8/27/25 184.70 345,827.06

09/16/2025 5012 U.S. Bank Transfer of tax assessments 17,693.19 328,133.87

09/17/2025 200036 Kilinski Van Wyk PLLC Invoice: 13173 (Reference: general legal services.  ) 2,586.00 325,547.87

09/17/2025 200037 Vesta District Services Invoice: 428517 (Reference: Billable Expenses - Aug 2025.  ) 13.64 325,534.23

09/17/2025 200038 ECS Integrations LLC Invoice: 102968 (Reference: panel issue and repair.  ) 210.00 325,324.23

09/22/2025 200039 Catherinne ProCleaners LLC Invoice: 1210 (Reference: Aug25.  )  Invoice: 1218 (Reference: Sanitizing wet gy    2,160.00 323,164.23

09/22/2025 01ACH092225 Waste Management of FL 853.05 322,311.18

l



09/23/2025 200040 Arbitrage Rebate Counselors, LLC Invoice: 091625- (Reference: Preparation of Annual Arbitrage Report for The ab 475.00 321,836.18

09/30/2025 200041 Floralawn Invoice: 34783 (Reference: 17894 Annuals Installation.  ) 250.00 321,586.18

09/30/2025 End of Month 0.00 78,128.33 321,586.18

l



UNION PARK EAST  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT STONEBRIER  

 
 
 
 

 
EXHIBIT 17 

 
  

l



l



UNION PARK EAST  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT STONEBRIER  

 
 
 
 

 
EXHIBIT 18 

 
  

l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l


	@1CL
	@2025-10-22 Draft Agenda - UPE
	1 Exhibit 1
	1a UPE Oaths of Office
	2 Exhibit 2
	2a UPE Res 2026-01 Designating Officers
	3 Exhibit 3
	3a Blue Water Aquatics - UPE aquatic report
	3b Blue Water Aquatics - UPE Fountain Repair Report
	3c Blue Water Aquatics - UPE Fountain Repair Report
	4 Exhibit 4
	4a Blue Water Aquatics - UPE quarterly fountain maintenance $7,000-yr
	5 Exhibit 5
	6 Exhibit 6
	7 Exhibit 7
	8 Exhibit 8
	9 Exhibit 9
	9a Lighthouse Engineering - UPE Erosion Report (1157 Pipestone Pl) 10-14-2025
	10 Exhibit 10
	10a Stabile - drainage clearance
	11 Exhibit 11
	12 Exhibit 12
	12a Clubhouse Use - Yoga Class
	13 Exhibit 13
	13a O'Cain Booth Request
	14 Exhibit 14
	14a 2024-05-30 UPE Special Meeting Mintes - DRAFT
	15 Exhibit 15
	15a 2025-09-24 UPE Meeting Minutes - DRAFT
	16 Exhibit 16
	16a UPE Sept 2025 Fin
	17 Exhibit 17
	17a Ratify - Blue Water Aquatics - UPE Fountain H Repair - $282.25
	18 Exhibit 18
	18a 2025 Report - Union Park East CDD 2017A1, A2, A3 (June 15, 2025)
	18b Arbitrage Rebate Counselors - UPE Series 2021 AA3 FY 2025 Arbitrage Report

	County of: PASCO
	Full Name of Office  Abbreviations Not Accepted: UNION PARK EAST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT SUPERVISOR
	Home: Off
	Office: Off
	Street or Post Office Box: 
	Print Name: 
	City State Zip Code: 


